
 

 

 

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

AGENDA 

Wednesday, July 24, 2019 

8:00 AM 
 

 SONOMA VALLEY HOSPITAL  

ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM 

347 ANDRIEUX ST SONOMA CA 95476 

 

AGENDA ITEM RECOMMENDATION 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special 

accommodations to participate in a District meeting, please contact the District 

Clerk, Stacey Finn, at sfinn@svh.com or (707) 935.5004  at least 48 hours prior to 

the meeting. 

  

MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of 

everyone in our community. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS Boerum  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION 

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the 

agenda. It is recommended you keep your comments to three minutes or less. Under 

State Law, matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by 

the Committee at this time. For items appearing on the agenda, the public will be 

invited to make comments at the time the item comes up.  

  

3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 GC Minutes for 09.25.18 

Boerum Action 

4.     GOVERNING BIDDING FOR FACILITY PROJECTS P-2016-

11.03 

Boerum Inform/Action 

5.     INVESTMENT POLICY P-2014.03.06 Boerum Inform/Action 

6.     IDENTIFICATION OF DOCUMENTS AND ISSUES TO 

REVIEW 

Boerum Inform 

6.    2019 WORK PLAN Boerum Inform 

7.    2019 MEETING SCHEDULE  Boerum Inform 

8.   GOVERNANCE CHARTER REVIEW Boerum Inform 

9.    ADJOURN Boerum  

 

mailto:sfinn@svh.com


 

 

 
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
AGENDA 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2018 
8:30 AM 

 
 ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE ROOM  

347 ANDRIEUX STREET, SONOMA, CA 95476 
 

AGENDA ITEM RECOMMENDATION 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special 
accommodations to participate in a District meeting, please contact the District 
Clerk, Stacey Finn, at sfinn@svh.com or (707) 935.5004  at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting. 

  

MISSION STATEMENT 
The mission of the SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of 
everyone in our community. 

  

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS Hohorst  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the 
agenda. It is recommended you keep your comments to three minutes or less. Under 
State Law, matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by 
the Committee at this time. For items appearing on the agenda, the public will be 
invited to make comments at the time the item comes up.  

Hohorst  

No public present   

3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 GC Minutes for 08.21.18 

Hohorst Action 

  MOTION by 
Boerum to 
approve. All in 
favor.  

4.   BOARD MEMBER AND BOARD CHAIRPERSON LEGAL 
DUTIES, ROLES AND RESPONSIBLITIES AND LIMIT ON 
POWER AND AUTHORITY POLICY #2018.09.25 

 

Hohorst Inform/Action 

Policy amendment’s made. Recommendation to move forward to the 
Board for discussion.  

 MOTION: by 
Boerum to 
approve. All in 
favor.  

6. ADJOURN Hohorst  

09:00AM   

 



 1 

 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES GOVERNING BIDDING FOR 
FACILITY PROJECTS # P-2016.11.03 

 
 
1. PURPOSE 

1.1 The purpose of this policy is to clarify the public contracting processes for 
Facility Projects (as defined in Section 2) of the Sonoma Valley Health Care District (“District”) 
and to provide guidance regarding these processes to the District’s Board of Directors (“Board”), 
President and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), and employees. The Policy will take effect 
when the District Board notifies the State Controller of its intention to become subject to The 
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act.  

1.2 The District’s public contracting areas for Facility Projects include purchasing, 
professional services, leasing and real estate and facilities construction.  This Construction 
Bidding Policy (“Policy”) contains general bidding policy guidelines and specifically addresses 
projects relating to the construction or improvement of a hospital or health care facility.   This 
Policy covers the contracting for professional services related to Facility Projects. It does not 
cover contracting for professional services that are not related. The Policy does not apply to 
contracts for the procurement of materials and supplies that are not related to Facility Projects. 
For these contracts the District’s Policy Governing Purchases of Materials, Supplies and 
Equipment and Procurement of Professional Services shall be used. 

1.3 It is the intent of the Board, consistent with the District’s obligations, to obtain the 
best value for all expenditures, consistent with the responsibility to provide quality health care to 
its patients.   

1.4 It is the intent of the Board to provide an equal opportunity to all qualified and 
responsible parties wishing to participate in the bidding process with respect to Facility Projects 
for the District and the Hospital.  

1.5 It is the intent of the Board to clarify, with this policy, the Board’s legal authority 
granted to the President and Chief Operating Officer (“CEO”) by the Board with regard to 
Facility Projects for the District and Hospital. It is also the intent to clarify the legal authority 
retained by the Board. 

1.6 Any contract awarded by the District shall be subject to all applicable provisions 
of federal, California and local laws, including without limitation, laws relating to the 
performance of work for a public agency.  In the event of a conflict between any contract 
documents and any applicable law, the law shall prevail. 

1.7 This policy does not address or govern contracting with providers or physicians. 



 2 

2. DEFINITIONS 

2.1 “Facility” means any plant, building, structure, ground facility, utility system, 
real property, streets and highways, or other public work improvement.  (PCC § 22002 (e)). 

2.2 “Facility Project” means work relating to projects involving construction, 
reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, improvement, demolition, and repair work 
involving the hospital and any leased, or operated facility of the hospital.  Excluded from this 
definition is routine, recurring, and usual work for the preservation or protection of the facility 
and minor repainting (“Facility Maintenance”).  (PCC § 22002 (c)). 

2.3 “Responsible Bidder” means a bidder who has demonstrated the attribute of 
trustworthiness and quality during prior service, a reputation for reliability and satisfactory 
service with other clients, sufficient financial capacity and the physical capability and the 
technical and non-technical expertise in order to perform the contract satisfactorily.  (PCC § 
1103). 

 

3. ETHICS 

3.1 Conflict of Interest.  No Board member or employee of the District/Hospital may 
participate in any selection process when such person has a relationship with a person or 
business entity seeking a contract which would subject that person to the prohibitions in 
Government Code § 87100. 

3.2 No Kickbacks.  With respect to all contracts covered by this Policy, any practices 
or procedures which might result in unlawful activity are prohibited, including practices which 
might result in rebates, kickbacks or other unlawful consideration.   

3.3 No Advantage.  No illegal, unfair, unethical or otherwise improper advantage 
shall be accorded to any bidder by the District, a Board member or an employee of the 
District/Hospital. 

 

4. CONTRACTING FOR FACILITIES PROJECTS 

4.1 Election To Become Subject To The Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Act.  The Board hereby elects under PCC § 22030 to become subject to the Uniform 
Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (the “Act”), codified at PCC §§ 22000 to 22050, and 
the uniform construction cost accounting procedures adopted by the California Uniform 
Construction Cost Accounting Commission established under the Act (the “Commission”), as 
they may each from time to time be amended, and directs that the CEO notify the State 
Controller forthwith of this election.  The management of all District Facility Projects shall meet 
the requirements prescribed in those provisions, and shall be guided by the Commission’s Cost 
Accounting Policies and Procedures Manual (the “Manual”).  By becoming subject to the Act 
and as set forth in this policy, the Board clarifies the Board’s legal authority granted by the 
Board to the CEO with regard to the contracting of Facility Projects for the District and Sonoma 
Valley Hospital (“Hospital”), and the legal authority retained by the Board. 



 3 

4.2 Delegation of Authority.  Except as specified in Section 6 of this policy and 
elsewhere in this policy where it is explicitly stated, the Board hereby delegates to the CEO the 
authority to act on behalf of the Board in the implementation of the provisions of this Policy. In 
all instances where the Board’s legal authority is granted to the CEO, it is understood that the 
CEO may in turn delegate this authority to a member of the CEO’s staff. Responsibility for 
adherence to this policy, when the authority is delegated by the CEO to a staff member, remains 
with the CEO. The CEO is responsible for developing written procedures to implement and 
manage this Board Policy. 

4.2.1 Purchasing.  The CEO is authorized by this Policy to make all purchases 
and to execute all purchase orders or contracts for the District and the Hospital duly authorized 
by the Board pursuant to this policy.  All purchases and contracts shall be upon written order.  
(H&S § 32132(b); id. § 32121(c), 

4.3 Policy Revisions.  If the CEO determines that any portion of this Board Policy is 
in need of revision, or an exception is needed, the CEO shall bring the issue, in writing, with a 
recommendation for the change or exception along with the rationale, to the Board’s Governance 
Committee for its review and then to the Board for its action. 

4.4 Exemptions to Bidding and Lowest Bid Acceptance.  The Board shall not be 
required to apply the lowest bid policy to:  

(i) Emergency contracts and emergency service contracts (PCC 22035) 
(ii) Change orders to existing contracts that are less than 5% of the original 

contract (H&S Code 32132) 
(iii) Professional services of private architectural, landscape architectural, 

engineering, environmental, land surveying, or construction project 
management firms for work on Facility Projects (Government Code 4526, 
H&S Code 32132.b) 

(iv) Facility Projects where the District has elected to use a design-build 
method to select the contractor (PCC, 20133) 

(v) Purchasing of medical equipment or surgical equipment or supplies, or 
electronic data processing and telecommunications goods and services 
(H&S § 32132(b), (d).) 

(vi) Land and building leases and purchases 

4.4.1 Exception For Emergency Contracts and Emergency Service 
Contracts.  In cases of emergency when repair or replacements are necessary, the District may 
proceed at once to replace or repair any facility without adopting plans, specifications, strain 
sheets, or working details, and procure the necessary equipment, services, and supplies for those 
purposes, without giving notice for bids to let contracts.  (Public Contract Code (“PCC”) § 
22035; id. 22050(a)(1).)  If notice for bids to let contracts will not be given, the District shall 
comply with the following procedures:  

(a) Finding Of Emergency.  Before emergency procedures may be 
used, the Board shall make a finding, based on substantial evidence set forth in the minutes of its 
meeting, that the emergency will not permit a delay resulting from a competitive solicitation for 
bids, and that the action is necessary to respond to the emergency.  (PCC § 22050(a)(2).) 



 4 

(b) Delegation To CEO.  The Board, by a four-fifths vote in 
approving this policy, shall delegate, to the CEO the authority to order emergency action.  (PCC 
§ 22050(b)(1).) 

(c) Reporting By CEO.  If the CEO orders any emergency action, the 
CEO shall report to the Board Chair within 24 hours of the action, and report to the Board at its 
next regularly scheduled meeting or at a special session of the Board within 14 days, the reasons 
justifying why the emergency did not permit a delay resulting from a competitive solicitation for 
bids and why the action was necessary to respond to the emergency.  The CEO shall also report 
on the status of the emergency contracts at each following Board meeting until the action is 
terminated (contracts completed).  (PCC § 22050 (c)(1)) 

4.4.2 Exception For Change Orders.  The CEO shall not be required to secure 
bids for change orders that do not materially change the scope of work set forth in a contract 
previously made pursuant to this policy, provided:  (H&S Code 32132 (c)) 

(a) The contract was made in compliance with bidding thresholds 
stated in Section 4. 

(b) No individual change order amounts to more than five percent 
(5%) of the contract. 

(c) The total project cost for a negotiated contract project would not 
exceed the dollar amount for negotiated contracts, $45,00060,000. 

(d) The total project cost for a contract awarded by informal bidding 
procedures would not exceed the dollar amount of $175,000200,0000.  

4.4.3 Exception For Facility Project Professional Services.  Competitive 
bidding is not required for contracts for professional services.  (H&S § 32132(b).) 

(a) Where required by Facility Projects, the CEO shall award contracts 
for professional services of private architectural, landscape architectural, engineering, 
environmental, land surveying or construction management firms on the basis of demonstrated 
competence and on the professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of 
the types of services to be performed and at fair and reasonable prices.  (Government Code 
(“Govt”) § 4526; H&S § 32132(b)) 

(b) The CEO shall establish procedures for verifying competence and 
professional qualifications and for determining fair and reasonable benchmark prices for these 
services (Govt § 4526.).  

(c) When bids are solicited for architectural, landscape architectural, 
engineering, environmental, land surveying or construction management firms, the Notice 
Inviting Bids for these services shall contain the following statement in boldface type: “Please 
be advised that the successful design professional will be required to indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless the District against liability for claims that arise out of or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the design professional.”  (Civil Code § 
2782.8.)   

4.4.4 Exception For Design-Build Projects.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary, the Board may elect to use the Design – Build method for bidding on Facility Projects 
if the project amount will be greater than $1.0 million. The design-build procedure is described 



 5 

in Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 22160) of Part 3 of Division 2 of the Public Contract 
Code.  (H&S § 32132.5) 

(a) In estimating the cost of a Design – Build Facility Project, the 
costs for OSHPD and City of Sonoma Permits and the costs for design professionals shall be 
included.  The overhead allocation required for uniform construction cost accounting procedures 
shall not be added to the cost of subcontractors and the cost for material purchases. 

(b) If the Board elects to use the Design – Build method, the Board 
shall follow the contracting provisions of Public Contract Code § 20133 and shall award the 
contract based on “best value” as defined in section 20133.  Because of their complexity, the 
Design – Build contracting provisions are not included in this policy.1 

4.4.5 Exception for Purchases of Medical and IT Equipment.  Competitive 
bidding is not required for purchases of medical or surgical equipment or supplies, or for 
electronic data processing and telecommunications goods and services.  The phrase “medical or 
surgical equipment or supplies” includes only equipment or supplies commonly, necessarily, and 
directly used by, or under the direction of, a physician and surgeon in caring for or treating a 
patient in a hospital.  (H&S § 32132(b), (d).) 

4.4.6 Exception For Leasing And Real Estate.  Contracts regarding land 
purchases and leases which bind the District to the terms of a contractual agreement shall be 
approved by the Board and shall be signed by the Chair of the Board unless the Board designates 
an alternate signer when the contract is approved. 

4.5 Project Specifications.  The CEO shall prepare bid packages for any Facility 
Project contract.  The bid packages shall include specifications as follows: 

4.5.1 Project Description.  The CEO shall prepare plans, specifications or a 
description of general conditions (“Specifications”) for the project.  The Specifications shall be 
in such detail and written with such specificity as may be required to allow all potential bidders 
to understand the project and give a level playing field to all bidders.  (PCC § 22039, as amended 
1/1/16 by Omnibus Bill SB 184) 

4.5.2 Bidder’s Security.  The specifications shall include the requirement for 
bidder’s security, performance bonds and payment bonds. 

4.5.3 Facility Contract Construction Subcontractors.  The CEO shall include 
in the Specifications a provision that any prime contractor shall include in his/her bid:  

(a) The name and address of each subcontractor who will perform 
labor or render service or fabricate and install a portion of the Facility Project in excess of 5% of 
the total amount of the contract.  

(b) A description of portion of the Facility Project to be performed by 
each subcontractor listed.   

                                                 
1  In 2009 the Board developed and adopted procedures and contract language, etc. for the use of 
the Design – Build method on the 2008 General Obligation Bond Project and these procedures 
and contract language are available for use again. 



 6 

(c) The bidder shall list only one subcontractor for each portion of the 
Facility Project as is defined by the bidder in the bid. (PCC § 4104.)  

(d) A prime contractor whose bid is accepted may not substitute a new 
subcontractor in place of the subcontractor listed in the original bid except as allowed under 
Public Contract Code 4107.  Any work not listed for a specific subcontractor must be done by 
the prime contractor and shall not be substituted 

4.5.4 Completion Date.  The CEO shall include in the Specifications a time 
within which the whole or any specified portion of the Facility Project shall be completed.  (Govt 
§ 53069.85.)  

(a) The CEO may include in the Specifications a provision that the 
contractor shall forfeit a specified sum of money for each day completion is delayed beyond the 
date stated in the Specifications.  

(b) The Board may include in the Specifications a provision for the 
payment of a bonus to the contractor for completion of the project prior to the specified date 
stated in the Specifications when such timely completion would be beneficial to the District.  
(Govt § 53069.85.) 

4.6 Facility Project Cost Estimate.  A project cost estimate shall be prepared by the 
CEO for each Facility Project. The Cost Estimate, at a minimum, shall contain: (The Manual, 
Chapter 3) 

(a) A description of the project with sufficient detail to allow 
reasonable accuracy of cost estimates. 

(b) A description of the method used to estimate each cost segment. 

(c) An estimate of all direct and indirect costs for the project. 

(d) A calculated administrative overhead percentage (maximum 30%) 
shall be added to all estimates for sub-contractor costs and direct material purchases. 

Prevailing wage rates shall be used in all estimates. 

The estimate shall be used to determine the appropriate process for the selection of contractors or 
sub-contractors.  

The estimate shall be prepared in sufficient specificity to enable comparisons to actual cost when 
the project is completed. 

4.6.1 Costs To Be Excluded From Estimate.  The following costs may be 
excluded from the cost estimate: 

(a) OSHPD and City of Sonoma permits; (ii) 

(b) Facility Project engineering, architectural and construction 
management services  

(c) Medical equipment.  Section 4.4.5 of this Policy covers the 
selection process for these services 

4.7 Submission of Bids.  With respect to all bids submitted for Facility Projects 
covered by this Policy: 



 7 

4.7.1 All bids shall be presented under sealed cover and accompanied by one of 
the following forms of bidder's security: (PCC § 10167.) 

(a) An electronic bidder's bond by an admitted surety insurer 
submitted using an electronic registry service approved by the department advertising the 
contract.  

(b) A signed bidder's bond by an admitted surety insurer received by 
the department advertising the contract.  

(c) Cash, a cashier's check, or certified check received by, and made 
payable to, the director of the department advertising the contract. 

(d) The required bidder's security shall be in an amount equal to at 
least 10 percent of the amount bid.  A bid shall not be considered unless one of the forms of 
bidder's security is enclosed with it. 

(e) All bids submitted pursuant to this section shall also comply with 
the provisions of Section 1601 of the Public Contract Code. 

The CEO shall return to all unsuccessful bidders their respective bidder’s security within five (5) 
working days after the contracts for the project have been awarded. : 

4.8 Categories Of Contracts By Dollar Thresholds.  For purposes of bidding 
procedures, Facility Projects are divided into three different categories by dollar thresholds, as 
follows: 

4.8.1 Under to $45,00060,000.  The CEO shall award contracts for District 
Facility Projects of forty-five thousand dollarssixty thousand dollars ($45,00060,000) or less by 
negotiated contract, or by purchase order. The CEO is not bound to accept the bid of the lowest 
responsible bidder (PCC § 22032(a), 22034 (e)). 

4.8.2 Between $45,00060,000 and $175,000200,000.  The CEO shall award 
contracts for District Facility Projects more than forty five thousandsixty thousand dollars 
($45,00060,000) but less than one two hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($175200,000) or 
less by informal procedures as set forth in this Policy.  (PCC § 22032(b), 22034 (e)) 

4.8.3 Over $175200,000.  The Board shall award contracts for District Facility 
Projects of more than one hundred seventy-fivetwo hundred thousand dollars ($175200,000), 
except as otherwise provided in this Policy, by formal bidding procedure as set forth in this 
policy.  (PCC § 22032(c)) 

4.8.4 Separation of Work Orders of Facility Projects.  Splitting or separating 
Facility Projects into smaller work orders or projects after competitive bidding for the purpose of 
evading the provisions of this policy is prohibited.  (PCC § 22033) 

4.9 Procedures For Projects More than $4560,000 but less than $175200,000 – 
Informal Bidding Procedure.  Facility Projects of more than forty fivesixty thousand dollars 
($4560,000) but less than one two hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($175200,000), the 
District shall use informal bidding procedures, as follows: 

4.9.1 List of Trade Journals.  The CEO shall use the list of trade journals 
provided in the Cost Accounting Policies and Procedures Manual (“The Manual”), Chapter 1.05 
for all mailings to trade journals required by this section. 



 8 

4.9.2 List of Registered Contractors.  The CEO shall develop an objective 
pre-qualification criteria and process for use in the formation and maintenance of the District’s 
contractor’s lists. (The Manual, Chapter 1.04) 

(a) During November of each yearAnnually, the CEO shall establish a 
new or update its existing list of registered contractors by mailing, faxing, or emailing a written 
notice to all construction trade journals designated in Section 4.9.1, inviting all licensed 
contractors to submit the name of their firm to the District for inclusion on the District’s list of 
qualified bidders for the following calendar year. 

(b) The notice shall require that the contractor provide the name and 
address, fax number, and email address to which a Notice to Contractors or Proposal should be 
mailed, faxed, or emailed, a phone number at which the contractor may be reached, the type of 
work in which the contractor is interested and currently licensed to do (earthwork, pipelines, 
electrical, painting, general building, etc.) together with the class of contractor's license(s) held 
and contractor license numbers(s).   

(c) The CEO may include any contractor names it desires on the list, 
but the list must include, at a minimum, all contractors who meet the objective pre-qualification 
criteria and who have properly provided the District with the information required under (b) 
above, either during the calendar year in which the list is valid or during November or December 
of the previous year.   

(d) A contractor who supplies the required information and meets the 
objective pre-qualification criteria may have their firm added to the District’s contractors list at 
any time during the year. 

(e)  The CEO shall maintain the list of qualified contractors, identified 
according to categories of work 

4.9.3 Mailing of Notices Inviting Informal Bids.  The CEO shall provide 
notice to contractors inviting informal bids.  (PCC § 22034).  

(a) The CEO shall mail, fax, or email the notice inviting informal bids 
to all contractors on the list for the category of work being bid unless the product or service is 
proprietary.  (PCC § 22034(b)) 

(b) The CEO may mail, fax, or email a notice inviting informal bids to 
all trade journals listed in Section 4.9.1 unless the product or service is proprietary.  (PCC § 
22034 (b)) 

(c) The mailing, faxing, or emailing of notices to contractors and 
construction trade journals pursuant to subdivisions (a) and (b) shall be completed not less than 
10 calendar days before bids are due. (PCC § 22034 (c)) 

(d) The notice inviting informal bids shall describe the project in 
general terms, state how more detailed information about the project may be obtained, state the 
time and place for the submission of bids and the time and place for opening the bids.  (PCC § 
22034(d)) 

4.9.4 Award of Bids, Delegation to CEO.  The Board delegates the authority 
to award informal contracts to the CEO and the CEO shall award the contracts for each type of 
work for Informally Bid Facility Projects ($4560,000 to $175200,000) to the lowest responsible 



 9 

bidder who shall give the security the District requires.  (PCC § 22034(e); id. § 22038(b); H&S § 
32132PCC § 22032; PCC § 22020) 

4.9.5 Minimum Number of Informal Bids.  The CEO shall consider a 
minimum of three (3) informal bids whenever possible; however, where the CEO cannot obtain 
three informal bids or when the CEO decides that time will not permit obtaining three informal 
bids, the CEO may consider a minimum of two (2) informal bids.  All bids shall be in writing, 
sealed, and subject to the following general conditions. 

4.9.6 Multiple Informal Bids.  When informal bids for multiple items are 
solicited at the same time, the CEO may accept parts of one or more bids (provided the Notice 
Inviting Bids so indicates) unless the bidder has specified to the contrary, in which event the 
District reserves the right to disregard the bid in its entirety. 

4.9.7 Total Project Cost in Excess of $175200,000.   If the project cost for all 
bids received is in excess of $175200,000, the Board may, by adoption of a resolution by a four-
fifths vote, award the contract, at $187,500212,500 or less, to the lowest responsible bidder, if it 
determines the cost estimate of the District was reasonable.  (PCC § 22034(f)) 

If the total Project Cost is greater than $187212,500 the Board shall reject all bids and may direct 
the CEO to rebid the project.  

4.9.8 Minor Deviations.  The CEO reserves the right to waive inconsequential 
deviations from the specifications in the substance or form of informal bids received. 

4.10 Procedures For Projects Over $175200,000 – Formal Bidding Procedure.  
District Facility Projects of more than one hundred seventy-fivetwo hundred thousand dollars 
($175200,000) shall, except as otherwise provided in this Policy, be let to contract by formal 
bidding procedure as follows.  

4.10.1 Plans and Specifications.  When the CEO determines that the estimated 
cost for a Facility Project is more than $175200,000, the CEO shall prepare plans, specifications 
or a description of general conditions (“Specifications”) for the project.  The Specifications shall 
be in such detail and written with such specificity as may be required to allow all potential 
bidders to understand the project and give a level playing field to all bidders.  (PCC § 22039, as 
amended 1/1/16 by Omnibus Bill SB 184) 

The specifications shall include the requirement for bidder’s security, performance bonds and 
payment bonds. The specifications shall also include the time within which the whole or any 
specified portion of the Facility Project shall be completed.  (Govt § 53069.85.) 

4.10.2 Requirements of Notice Inviting Formal Bids.  The notice inviting 
formal bids shall at a minimum include all of the following in the notice inviting formal bids 
(PCC § 22037): 

(a) Description of the contemplated Facility Project. 

(b) The procedure by which potential bidders may obtain electronic 
copies of the Plans and Specifications (or printed copies if not available electronically) 

(c) The final time, date and address (or e-mail address) for receiving 
and opening of bids (including designation of the appropriate District person or office) (Govt § 
53068; PCC § 4104.5; id. § 22037) 



 10 

(d) The date, time and place, and the name and address of the person 
responsible for receiving bids;  

(e) The payment and performance bond amounts required by the 
Specifications (Civil Code § 9550) 

(f) The time within which the whole or any specified portion of the 
Facility Project shall be completed (Govt § 53069.85) 

(g) The penalty amount, if required by the Specifications, for each day 
completion is delayed beyond the specified time.  (Govt 53069.85) 

(h) The Board approved bonus amount payable to the contractor for 
completion of the work prior to the specified completion day, if a bonus payment is included in 
the Specifications. (Govt § 53069.85) 

4.10.3 Publication Of Notice Inviting Formal Bids.  The notice shall be 
published at least 14 calendar days before the date of opening the bids in The Sonoma Index 
Tribune.  The notice inviting formal bids shall also be mailed, faxed or emailed to trade journals 
listed in the Cost Accounting Policies and Procedures Manual (“The Manual”), Chapter 1.05.  
The notice shall be mailed, faxed or emailed at least 15 calendar days before the date of opening 
the bids.  In addition to notice required by this section, the CEO may give such other notice as 
she/he deems proper.  (PCC § 22037) 

4.10.4 Prequalification.  The CEO shall prepare a uniform prequalification 
system using a standard questionnaire to evaluate the ability, competency and integrity of bidders 
as outlined in the Local Agency Public Construction Act, PCC § 20101 et seq. and it shall be 
used for all projects estimated to cost over $500,000.  In such event, the CEO shall require each 
prospective bidder to complete and submit a standardized questionnaire and financial statement.  
The standardized questionnaires and financial statements received from interested contractors are 
not public documents and shall not be made public.  The CEO may use the prequalification 
procedure for any Facility Project that requires formal bidding. 

4.10.5 Submission of Formal Bids.  The Board shall accept only written sealed 
bids from the prospective bidders.  Upon receipt, the bid shall be stamped with the date and time 
the bid was received.  All bids shall remain sealed until the date and time set forth for opening 
the bids in the Notice Inviting Bids.  Any bid received by the District/Hospital after the time 
specified in the Notice Inviting Bids shall be returned unopened. (Govt § 53068). The CEO may 
elect to receive bids and supporting materials electronically using procedures in compliance with 
PCC § 1601. 

4.10.6 Examination and Evaluation of Formal Bids.  On the date provided in 
the Notice Inviting Bids, a person designated by the CEO shall attend and officiate over the 
opening of bids (“Opening”).  The bids shall be made public for bidders and members of the 
public who may be present at the Opening.  The District reserves the right not to determine the 
low bidder at the Opening, to obtain the opinion of counsel on the legality and sufficiency of all 
bids, and to determine at a later date which bid to accept.  Such determination shall be made 
within sixty (60) calendar days of the Opening or unless a different period of time is specified in 
the Notice Inviting Bids.   



 11 

4.10.7 Award of Contract.  The Board shall award the contract to the lowest 
Responsible Bidder, as defined in Section 2.3, provided the bid is reasonable and meets the 
requirements and criteria set forth in the notice inviting bids.  (PCC § 22038(b)) 

(a) If two or more bids are the same and the lowest, the Board may 
accept the one it chooses.  (PCC § 22038(b))   

(b) If the Board determines that the lowest bidder is not responsible, 
the Board may award the contract to the next lowest responsible bidder. 

(c) If the CEO anticipates that the Board may decide to award the 
contract to a bidder other than the lowest bidder pursuant to subparagraph (b), the CEO shall, 
with the assistance of District Counsel, first notify the low bidder of any evidence, either 
obtained from third parties or concluded as a result of the District’s investigation, which reflects 
on such bidder’s responsibility.  The CEO shall afford the low bidder an opportunity to rebut 
such adverse evidence and shall permit such bidder to present evidence that it is qualified.  The 
opportunity to rebut adverse evidence and to present evidence of qualification may be submitted 
in writing or at an informal hearing of the Board, individual and/or committee as determined by 
the Board.  

4.10.8 Minor Deviations.  The Board reserves the right to waive inconsequential 
deviations from the specifications in the substance or form of formal bids received. 

4.10.9 Rejection Of Bids.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Board 
is under no obligation to accept the lowest responsible bidder and reserves the right to reject all 
bids.  (PCC § 22038(a); H&S Code § 32132. If after the first invitation of bids all bids are 
rejected, after reevaluating its cost estimates of the project, the Board shall abandon the project 
or re-advertise for bids in the manner described in this policy. 

4.10.10If No Bids Received.  If no bids are received through the formal or 
informal procedure, the project may be performed by negotiated contract without further 
complying with this article.  PCC § 22038 (c)) 

 

5. BOND REQUIREMENTS 

5.1 Performance Bond.  For any contract in excess of $25,000, the successful bidder 
shall furnish a performance bond in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the contract 
sum at the time of entering into the contract. The performance bond shall be filed with the CEO 
to insure the District against faulty, improper or incomplete materials or workmanship, and to 
insure the District of complete and proper performance of the contract. 

5.2 Payment Bond.  For any contract in excess of $25,000, the successful bidder to 
whom a contract is awarded shall furnish a payment bond acceptable to the District. (Civil Code 
§ 9550). This labor and material bond shall be filed with the CEO pursuant to applicable laws of 
the State of California.   

5.3 Professional Services.  The CEO shall not require a payment bond for 
architectural, landscape architectural, engineering, land surveying or construction management 
services. 



 12 

6. LIMITS OF AUTHORITY DELEGATED TO THE CEO, CAPITAL PROJECT 
CONTRACTS 

Facility Project contracts for capital projects that will financially obligate the District to more 
than $100,000 shall be reviewed by the Finance Committee. 

Facility Project contracts for capital projects that are included in the capital budget and will 
obligate the District to more than $175200,000 shall be approved by the Board. 

Facility Project contracts for capital projects that are not included in the capital budget and will 
obligate the District to more than $100,000 shall be approved by the Board. 

Facility Project change orders that in aggregate increase the scope of the Facility Project by more 
than 20% shall be approved by the Board. 

 



 
 

Sonoma Valley Hospital 
Sonoma Valley Healthcare District 

Policy and Procedure 
Organizational 

Title:  Investment Policy #P-2014.03.06 Number:  LD118 
Page: 1 of 1 
 

 

 

Carl Gerlach, CEO 01/22/08 
Effective 
Date:    

November 24, 1980 

Approved By Date Revision 
Dates:  

 

   
Signature Review 

Dates: 
6/89, 3/96, 3/99, 7/00, 12/01, 
3/05, 12/07 

POLICY 
 
Until such time as surplus funds exceed $5,000,000, all investments shall be placed with the 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).  If surplus funds exceed $5,000,000, an investment 
policy is to be developed and approved by the Finance Committee.  Funds required under bond 
indentures which are invested by a trustee are not covered by this policy. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY/RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW 
Board of Directors 
 
 
 

 



SUBJECT:  Governance Committee Charter

PAGE 1 OF 5 
 

EFFECTIVE: 1/5/12DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors 

APPROVED BY:  Board of Directors (1/5/12) REVISED: 1/3/13

 

 
Purpose: 

 

 
 

Consistent with the Mission of the District the Governance Committee (GC) assists the Board 
to improve its functioning, structure, and infrastructure, while the Board serves as the steward 
of the District. The Board serves as the representative of the residents of the SVHCD by 
protecting and enhancing their investment in the SVH in ways that improve the health of the 
community collectively and individually.  The Board formulates policies, makes decisions, and 
engages in oversight regarding matters dealing with ends, CEO performance, quality of care, 
and finances. The Board must ensure that it possesses the necessary capacities, 
competencies, structure, systems, and resources to fulfill these responsibilities and executive 
these roles. In this regard it is the Board’s duty to ensure that: 

•   Its configuration is appropriate; 

•   Necessary evaluation and development processes are in place; 

•   Its meetings are conducted in a productive manner; 

•   Its fiduciary obligations are fulfilled. 

 
The GC shall assist the Board in its responsibility to ensure that the Board functions effectively. 
To this end the GC shall: 

•   Formulate policy to convey Board expectations and directives for Board action; 

•   Make recommendations to the Board among alternative courses of action; 

• Provide oversight, monitoring, and assessment of key organizational processes and 
outcomes. 

• Take action on behalf of the Board when prompt action is necessary regarding pending 
legislation (state or federal) that affects the District/Hospital. The GC Chair shall report 
such action, and provide copies of correspondence with legislators, to the Board at the 
next regular Board meeting. 

 

The Board shall use the GC to address these duties and shall refer all matters brought to it by 
any party regarding Board governance to the GC for review, assessment, and recommended 
Board action, unless that issue is the specific charge of another Board Standing Committee. 
The GC makes recommendations and reports to the Board. It has no authority to make 
decisions or take actions on behalf of the District, except for legislative issues requiring prompt 
action. 



SUBJECT:  Governance Committee Charter

PAGE 2 OF 5 
 

EFFECTIVE: 1/5/12DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors 

APPROVED BY:  Board of Directors (1/5/12) REVISED: 1/3/13

 

 

Policy: 
 
 

SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY 
 

This is a SVCHD Board Policy and it specifically applies to the Board, the Governance 
Committee and all other Standing Committees, the CEO, and the Compliance Officer. 

 

RESPONSIBILITY 
 

Committee Structure and Membership 
 

• The GC, with input from the Standing Committees, shall review the composition of the 
Standing Committees annually for vacancies, including an assessment of the desired 
homogeneous and heterogeneous traits necessary for the Board to work together 
effectively.  Examples of desired homogeneous traits include integrity, interest in, and 
commitment to the Hospital, interpersonal maturity, and willingness to devote the 
necessary time and effort, and the ability get along and work effectively with others; and 
heterogeneous traits include their relationship to the Hospital, experience, gender, 
ethnicity, and expertise. The GC shall assist the Board in having a well qualified, 
committed, interpersonally skilled, and diverse mix of Standing Committee members, 
reflective of the District. 

• The GC, with input from the Standing Committees and the Board, shall identify the skill 
sets of the current members and the skills sets ideal for the Standing Committees as a 
whole, and present a matrix to the Board for its action and use when recruiting and 
screening potential Standing Committee members.  SVH employees and family 
members are not permitted to be on the Board Committees.  SVH employees and 
family members are not permitted to be on the Board Committees. 

 
Board Development 

 

•   New Member Orientation 

o Design our Board’s new-member orientation process and reassess it bi-annually 
before elections. 

 

•   Continuing Education of the Board 

o Plan the two annual board retreats—one in and one away from Sonoma. 
Identify an annual training program addressing current issues of importance to 
the Board to be presented off-site in Sonoma for the Board, possibly including 
Standing Committee members, Medical Staff, selected hospital leaders, and 
others as deemed appropriate by the Board. Coordinate with other Standing 
Committees as appropriate to avoid duplication of effort. 

o Direct and oversee our Board’s continuing education and development activities 



SUBJECT:  Governance Committee Charter

PAGE 3 OF 5 
 

EFFECTIVE: 1/5/12DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors 

APPROVED BY:  Board of Directors (1/5/12) REVISED: 1/3/13

 

 

for both the Board and its Standing Committees. 
 

•   Board Self Assessment 

o Direct and oversee the annual assessment of our Board, Standing Committees, 

and individual Board members; reviewing these assessments; and making 
recommendations to the Board regarding ways in which its performance and 
contributions can be enhanced. 

 

Monthly Board Development 

o Plan a systematic reading program for the Board, designed to increase Board 
knowledge in issues of interest and important to the District. The GC shall 
consult with the other Board members and the CEO in developing the program. 

 
Develop Policies and Recommend Decisions 

 

• Draft policies and decisions regarding governance performance and submit them to 
the Board for deliberation and action. 

 
Oversight 

 

•   Compliance 
o Recommend quantitative measures to be employed by the Board to assess 

governance performance and contributions. 

o Conduct the annual review of governance performance measures and submit 
an analysis to the Board for deliberation and action. 

• Conduct an annual assessment of all Board policies and decisions regarding 
governance performance. 

 
Legislation 

• Review, draft, and/or recommend legislative proposals to the Board for deliberation 
and action. 

• In those cases where sufficient time is not available for the Governance Committee or 
Board to deliberate and take action on a legislative or regulatory issue, the CEO and 
the Governance Committee Chair may commit the District to support or oppose 
legislative initiatives, provided the CEO and the Governance Committee Chair are in 
agreement on the position to be taken. 

•   Perform other tasks related to governance as assigned by the Board. 



SUBJECT:  Governance Committee Charter

PAGE 4 OF 5 
 

EFFECTIVE: 1/5/12DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors 

APPROVED BY:  Board of Directors (1/5/12) REVISED: 1/3/13

 

 

Annual GC Calendar 
 

• In April, in advance of the budget process, review the adequacy of financial and human 
resources currently allocated for the Board and its Standing Committees to meet their 
obligations and comply with their Charters. This includes but is not limited to the 
financial and human resources necessary to support the Board, for a Compliance 
Officer and related support funding, and Continuing Education Board retreat and local 
offsite, the annual Board self assessment, and new Board member orientation, and 
Board monthly development. 

• Annually review and assess all board policies regarding governance, specifically 
including the GC and all other Standing Committee Charters, and make 
recommendations to the Board for action in December. 

• The CY GC work plan shall be submitted to the CEO no later than November for input 
and resource assessment and shall be submitted to the Board for action no later than 
December. 

•   The GC shall report on the status of its prior year’s work plan accomplishments by 
December. 

•   The GC shall establish the next CY meeting schedule no later than December. 

• The CEO shall develop and provide a 12 month calendar of all scheduled Regular and 
Special Board Meetings and post on the SVH website at the beginning of the calendar 
year.  It shall be kept updated. 

• The CEO shall develop and submit proposed legislative changes annually at the first 
meeting after the legislature has adjourned its regular session for the next calendar 
year—typically September, October at the latest. The GC shall make its 
recommendations to the Board for action no later than December. 

• The GC shall annually review the District’s Code of Conduct and Compliance Program 
and report to the Board for its action no later than December. 

• The CEO shall promptly submit to the GC all reports, assessments, audits by external 
organizations and the Hospital’s responses that are not submitted to the Audit 
Committee or the Quality Committee as required by their Charters.  In those cases the 
GC shall determine the appropriate reviewing body and make that referral or conduct 
the review and referral to the Board itself. 

 
Even Numbered Year GC Calendar Years 

 

• Present the New Board Member Orientation Process to the Board for its review and 
action by August in even numbered years, in advance of the pending election. 

 
GC Membership 

 

The GC shall have 2 members, normally the Board Chair and the Board Secretary.  The Board 



SUBJECT:  Governance Committee Charter

PAGE 5 OF 5 
 

EFFECTIVE: 1/5/12DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors 

APPROVED BY:  Board of Directors (1/5/12) REVISED: 1/3/13

 

 

Chair shall serve as a member and Chair of the Governance Committee, unless the Board 
specifically acts to make an exception. . 

 
Staff to the GC 

 
The GC shall be staffed by the Hospital’s CEO and/or Administrative Representative. At the 
request of the GC Chair, the Compliance Officer shall attend GC meetings. 

 

 
 

Frequency of QC Meetings 
 

The GC shall meet six times a year at minimum, unless there is a need for additional meetings. 
Meetings may be held at irregular intervals. 

 
 

Public Participation 
 

All GC meetings shall be announced and conducted pursuant to the Brown Act. The general 
public, patients, and their families and friends, Medical Staff, and Hospital staff are always 
welcome to attend and provide input.  Other Board members may attend but may not comment 
as it may be a Brown Act violation. 

 

 
FREQUENCY OF REVIEW/REVISION 

 
The GC shall review the Charter annually, or more often if required.  If revisions are needed, 
they will be taken to the Board for action. 


	1 GC Agenda 07.24.19
	2 GC Minutes  09.25.18
	3 P-2016.11.03 Contracting Policy-Bidding for Facility Projects DRAFT
	4 P-2014.03.06 Investment Policy
	5 APPROVED GC Charter 01.03.13

